ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 20, 2006
8:05 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair

Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair

Representative Jim El ki ns

Representative Bob Lynn

Representati ve Jay Ranras

Representative Berta Gardner

Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EWS): DIVISION OF ELECTI ONS, ELECTRONI C VOTI NG
- HEARD

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NE S)

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion

Claire VanSciver Hall - Fairbanks
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REQ STER

VH TNEY H. BREWSTER, Director

Di vi sion of Elections

Ofice of the Lieutenant Gover nor
Juneau, Al aska

POSI Tl ON STATENMENT: Presented an overview of the touch-screen

voti ng machi nes.

SHELLY GROWADEN, El ections Supervi sor

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- Apri |

20, 2006



Central Region

D vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the overview by
t he Di vision of Elections.

ELLEN KELLY, HAVA Systens Manager

Di vision of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Denonstrated the voting nmachi nes during the
overview by the Division of Elections.

CLAI RE VanSCl VER HALL, Appoi ntee

to the Alaska Public Ofices Comm ssion (APQCC)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As appointee to APQCC, provided background
and answer ed questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:05:52 AM Represent ati ves
Gatto, Elkins, Gardner, and Seaton were present at the call to
order. Representatives Lynn, Ranras, and Guenberg arrived as

the neeting was in progress.

OVERVI EW
DI VI SI ON OF ELECTI ONS, ELECTRONI C VOTI NG

8:06: 59 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was the
overview by the Division of Elections regarding electronic
vot i ng.

8:07: 00 AM

VH TNEY H. BREWSTER, Director, Division of Elections, Ofice of
the Lieutenant Governor, presented an overview of the touch

screen voting machines. She said the division is currently
devel oping its procedures on how it will begin inplenmenting the
touch screen voting machines, and she wll provide a copy of

t hose provisions when they are conpl et ed.

8:09: 03 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 20, 2006



M5. BREWSTER offered a background on what happens before,

during, and after election day. She noted that the State of
Al aska has used the Diebold dobal Election Mnagenent System
and Accuvote optical scan machines to collect and tally votes
since 1998. Five recounts have taken place during that tine,

which she said have verified the accuracy of the electronic
voting machines. She said the Accuvote systemis used by |oca

jurisdictions, nost recently by the Minicipality of Anchorage.

M5. BREWSTER reviewed the basis of the focus on the 2004 general
el ection results. She said there are two reports generated on
el ection day: the statenent of votes cast report, which shows a
breakdown of the results, and the sunmary report, which shows
the total counts. In response to a request from Chair Seaton

she said she would provide copies of the reports to the
commttee, and she noted that they can also be obtained off of

the Division of Election's web site. The reason the statenent
of votes cast report total is different than the statew de
summary, she explained, is that it totaled early voters by
region for the top four races and ballot neasures - in each

district. She offered an exanple. She stated:

The early voting results are only reported once in
this summary. However, in the statenment of votes cast
report, the result for each House district are skewed,
because that regional total is listed in each of those
House districts.

M5. BREWSTER said the regional nunbers are correct, but they

are, throughout the report, listed in each House district as a
regional result, which nakes the report extrenely difficult to
read. In the 2004 el ection, she noted, the division programmed

the early voting nenory cards by region, and staff was unaware
that creating the nenory cards in that fashion would prohibit
the individual vote totals for U S. President, U S. Senate, and
state Senate candi dates, and ballot neasures to be broken down
by i ndividual House district. She said the vote totals for each
region appear on each individual district's report. She
indicated that the problem that occurred was not a software or
har dwar e problem but was an oversight of the division

8:15:19 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to Chair Seaton, confirned that the
summary report is "the official vote."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 20, 2006



8:15:29 AM

MS5. BREWSTER addressed the issue of early voting. She said the
old method was to have the individual go to the early voting
site, vote the ballot, and place it in an absentee voting ball ot
envel op, which would be counted after the polls close on
el ection day. Using the new nethod inplenented in 2004, a voter
who was properly registered in the correct House district and in
the correct region to vote early, would walk into the regiona

office, cast a ballot, and the ballot would be scanned in at
that very nonent. She indicated that in order to allow that
instant vote, "the programring of the nmenory cards for those
regional offices ... conbined the early votes for races higher
than a House district.” In House district 16-32, she reported,
some of the precincts show nore than 100 percent voter turnout.
She explained, "This is because the State of Al aska held a
special election for the Miunicipality of Anchorage concurrently
with the general election, and ... in these districts 16-32
there were two ballots.” She offered further details.

8:18:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked, "So, if you know how many
muni ci pal ballots were cast, you could deduct that nunber from
the total, and then it should be correct?"

8:18: 20 AM
M5. BREWSTER deferred the question to her el ection supervisor.
8:18:35 AM

SHELLY CGROWADEN, Elections Supervisor, Central Region, Division
of Elections, Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor, confirnmed
Representative Grdner's supposition. She offered further
det ai | s. She concluded, "So, you can clearly see on our
statement of votes cast, the total nunber of ballots that went
t hrough the Accuvote unit for those districts that included both
the state ballot and the municipal ballot."

8:20: 31 AM
CHAIR SEATON asked, "Then if you subtract the nunber of
muni ci pal ballots that were cast from the total, you do end up

with the nunber of ballots that were cast for statew de race
|s that correct?"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 20, 2006



8:20: 52 AM
M5. GROWNDEN confirned that's correct.
8:21: 06 AM

M5. GROWDEN, in response to a question from Representative
Gatto, said nunicipal and state ballots are tracked separately.
She offered further details.

8:22:12 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to questions from Chair Seaton, said
the information and explanations appear on the division's web
site. She confirnmed that the problens associated with regi ona

el ections have been solved. She enphasized that all of the
ballots from the 2004 general election were counted again for
the U S. Senate race, and that recount confirmed the origina

election results reported and certified by the state review

boar d. She relayed that the division is looking for ways to
i nprove reporting, and it wll be reaching out to interested
political groups, parties, and individuals to explain how to
read the reports. She added, "Because if you can't read the
reports, what's the point of having them available to the public
to look at?" In response to a question from Chair Seaton, she
confirmed that wearly wvoting wll be handled wthin each
i ndi vidual House district, and she said there will not be a

repeat of what happened in 2004.
8:25:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said M. Brewster's statenent that the
recount vote in 2004 resulted in an unchanged count s
bel i evabl e. However, after nentioning the conparison of a
visual count to that of the optical scanner used back then, he
asked if the vote count was nerely unchanged or was actually
"exactly correct."

8:25:57 AM

M5. BREWSTER replied that there was a change of 0.3 percent, due
primarily to the requirenent of the division to count, in a
recount, those absentee, by-nmil ballots that come in after

el ecti on day.

8:26:44 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how the 0.3 percent translates into
actual votes.

8:27:10 AM
MS. BREWSTER deferred the question to Ms. G owden.
8:27:25 AM

M5. GROWDEN confirmed Ms. Brewster's statenments regarding the
0.3 percent difference between the actual certified election
results and the certified recount results. She said that is not
an unusual difference. She stated that another reason votes
change is because people sonetines do not fill in the oval
conpletely on the ballot, and the division's policy is that if
for any reason a mark cannot be detected, a determnation is
made whether or not the voter's intent was clear.

8:29: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked again how many votes wequal 0.3
per cent .

8:29:50 AM

M5. CGROWDEN said she doesn't renmenber, but the nunmber is posted
on the division's web site.

8:30:49 AM

M5. BREWSTER said the nedia has mstakenly reported that touch
screens were sonehow involved in the recount issue, but she
stated for the record that touch screens were not used anywhere,
statewi de, in the 2004 general election.

8:31: 08 AM

CHAI R SEATON confirned, "I think the legislature had said that
until you have the paper backup, you couldn't use the machi nes
that ... you had in your possession."

8:31:13 AM

M5. BREWSTER reported that the Help Anerica Vote Act of 2002
(HAVA) requires that in each polling place there be a voting
unit accessible to the visually inpaired and disabled voters.
She said House Bill 320, which passed out of the legislature in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 20, 2006



2002, directed the division to provide balloting equipnent to
the visually inpaired and disabled voters, so that they would
have an opportunity to vote an independent ballot. House Bil

459, which passed in 2004, required the voting units to be
capable of providing a paper record that can be reviewed and
corrected at the tinme the voter casts his/her ballot, as well as
required that the paper receipt be available for a recount.

Another bill, HB 94, [which passed in 2005], directs the
Division of Elections to do a hand count in one precinct in each
of the 40 House districts before certifying an election. She
added, "That wll be new this year." Al though it does not

relate directly to electronic voting, [HB 94] allows for one
addi ti onal check by the division. Furthernore, she said, HB 94
also allows for the director to approve a voting system and
software that is certified by the federal election comm ssion.

M5. BREWSTER explained that the touch screen units that the
state has purchased were chosen because they neet the
requirenments of HAVA, as well as state |aw Furt hernore, the
units have been certified, wth all their conponents, by the

federal election conm ssion. She explained that federa
certification neans that that system neets certain functional
requirenents, per f or mance characteristics, docunent ati on
requi renents, and test evaluation criteria. Ms. Brewster

related that the touch screen units are conpatible with the
division's current system which has also been certified by the
Federal El ection Conm ssion.

M5. BREWSTER stated that although the touch screen machines are
provided for the visually inpaired and disabled voter, no voter
will be turned away who requests to use them She announced
that the Division of Elections will hold denobnstrations across
the state for the blind and disabled community, so that they can
becone famliar with the machines. The division will wuse this
opportunity to listen to feedback, particularly with regard to
how the division can train its poll workers to best assist the
di sabled community to use the nachines. She said there wll
also be a poster by the touch screen unit, with instructions
listed on it.

8:35: 28 AM

M5. BREWSTER said the state has purchased 505 touch screen
units. She enphasized that the machines will not be replacing
Al aska's current system of voting; the optical scan and the
paper ballot "in those hand count precincts”™ wll still be
avai | abl e. As per state law, there wll be one touch screen

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 20, 2006



unit in each of Alaska's 439 polling places, she said. The

units were purchased, using HAVA funds. Each unit alone costs
$3, 150. Each unit is equipped with a printer, to allow for a
paper trail, and that conponent adds an additional $350 to the
unit.

8:36: 28 AM

M5. BREWSTER outlined the process of security and testing done
before an election. She stated that the process is designed in
such a way that no single group or person can tanper with the
results or the system The state of Alaska uses an instate
printer to produce the ballots, rather than using the Accuvote
sof tware vendor. A printout of each voter's selection will be
made available to himher for review At that point, she
expl ai ned, the voter can either accept the ballot, reject it and
vote again, or reject it and choose another option available for
voting in the polling place.

M5. BREWSTER relayed that each touch screen machine uses a
menory card, which is programmed by a Division of Elections
enpl oyee. At no tinme during the programm ng of the nenory cards

is the unit connected to the Internet or "land"” - it is a stand-
al one conputer that prograns the cards, she said. Once the
cards are programed, they are tested by a bipartisan state
review board. The test results are printed from both the

optical scan and touch screen machines, and conpared to the
actual test ballots for the optical scan and the paper ballots
produced by the touch screen machines. The tested and certified
menory cards are then sent to the appropriate regiona
supervisors, where a separate test is done by a bipartisan
regi onal Accuvote review board to certify that the results match
those results certified by the state revi ew board.

M5. BREWSTER said each optical scan and touch screen unit also
undergoes a functionality test within the regional offices. She
said the board seals the nenory card into the unit and records
the seal and serial nunber of the units, at which point the
units are ready to be sent to the polling place. The final
test, she stated, is conpleted on election day by the bipartisan
el ection board, who prints out a "zero totals report” on the
unit to ensure that no ballots or results have been registered
on the machine. Those zero totals reports are then secured into
the unit, she concl uded.

8:41:34 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 20, 2006



M5. BREWSTER asked for volunteers to cone test the two voting
machi nes.

8:43: 07 AM

ELLEN KELLY, HAVA Systens Manager, Division of Elections, Ofice
of the Lieutenant Governor, denonstrated the voting nachines,
using comm ttee nenber vol unteers.

[ The entire commttee approached the two voting nachines and
were coached through the voting process by Ms. Kelly. Although
no one was near the mcrophones, the recording was not stopped.
At the end of the denonstration, the commttee nmenbers took
their seats.]

8:50: 48 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner, reiterated that there will be one machine in every
polling place, including the smaller precincts, and she said

concerns about keeping the ballot secret when there are only a
handful of voters using the touch screen machine is a valid one.

She stated that the division will encourage its poll workers "to
vote that machine so that there are nore votes and nore voters
using the machine." She stated that there wll also be

observers allowed in the polling place and, if at any tine it
appears that soneone is tracking how the machine is being used
t hose observers can watch for that. She continued:

There's no place that the division assigns a nunber or
designates a ballot to a voter during the voting
process. There is no nunber associated with that
paper ballot printed on the machine.

8:53:11 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that poll watchers see how many people go
into a voting booth, and in what sequence. He indicated that if
there is "a challenge" and "that tape is reviewed by political
parties and by everyone else who's reviewing that vote
sequence, " that could be problenmatic. Therefore, he said, he
has asked the division to have the poll workers intermttently
go into the enclosed polling booth, "so that people won't know

who voted when." He stated the reason for this is "just so that
we get away from any appearance from soneone being able to know,
' Ckay, you voted nunber three, and now | can tell how you
voted,' if there's a manual recount."”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 20, 2006



8:54:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said when he used the machine during the
denonstration tinme, he was |looking for a way to cheat, but could
not see a way to do so on the touch screen nmachine. Regar di ng
the card used, he asked if it wuld be possible for an
information technology (IT) genius to get the information off
the card, |eave the booth, make 500 cards, and hand them off to
a friend who would go in and vote 300 tines in different polling
pl aces. He indicated that he wants the division to consider any
weakest |ink that may exist.

8:56:17 AM

CHAI R SEATON explained that Representative Gtto is talking
about an "encoder that reactivates the key." He asked if it is
possi bl e for sonmebody to buy that encoder on the Internet.

8: 56: 28 AM

M5. BREWSTER said an encoder could be purchased from a vendor;
however, the encoder that the division uses is programmed by the
division wth specific information. She continued, "That
i ndi vidual would have to have access to our global election
management conputer. That is in a secured room |ocked up."

8:.58: 00 AM

IVB. BREWSTER, in response to Chair Seaton's restating
Representative Gatto's aforenentioned scenari o, said the
division will research the issue in order to address that
concern.

8:58: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if it would be possible for someone
to watch a poll worker to find out how the card is renewed, and
then "run around and go to all the precincts and vote again."

8:58: 36 AM

M5. BREWSTER explained that the decoder wll be worn on a
| anyard around the poll worker's neck, and it would be very
difficult for soneone to take it.

8:59: 09 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- April 20, 2006



CHAI R SEATON asked what kind of backup plan is in place if an
encoder "dies."

8:59:26 AM

MS5. KELLY said the card has to be progranmed with the encoder.
She offered her understanding that sone of the larger precincts
w Il have two encoders - one as a backup. She said the encoders
are very reliable, because the batteries last for seven years.
In response to a remark by Chair Seaton, she agreed that the
backup is the current voting system so there is no risk of
peopl e not being able to vote.

9:00: 21 AM
CHAIR SEATON asked if the division starts with new rolls of

paper backup ballots each time so that the process is not
del ayed by a poll worker having to reload the paper.

9: 00: 40 AM

M5. BREWSTER said the spool of paper holds 140-180 ballots,
depending on the I ength of ballot and how many are rejected. |If
the machine is popular and a nunber of people want to use it,
the paper would need to be replaced. She said, "It will renmain
in the security canister and will be sealed and protected as a
paper ballot wll be.™ In response to a question raised by

Representative David Guttenberg when he cane by previously to
view the voting machines, M. Brewster said there is a warning
screen on the machine that will not allow voting when there is
an insufficient anount of paper left, until the canister has
been repl aced.

9:02: 21 AM

M5. BREWSTER reviewed the steps taken once the polls are closed.
She said the election board prints a results report on each of
the machines before transmtting the results electronically or
calling themin to the appropriate division regional office. In
response to Chair Seaton, she explained that two reports are
run: one that remains with the tape, [and] the other [that] is
placed with the nmenory card after the election, sealed in an
envel ope, and sent to the state review board. The reports are
sent prior to the nmachine's being connected to upload the
results, so that when the conparison is done by the board, it
can |look at what the machine was recording and what was

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 20, 2006



upl oaded, to ensure those results match. As a result of the

passage of HB 94, the board will also be conducting a hand count
of one randomy selected precinct in each of the 40 House
districts. That precinct nust conprise at |least 5 percent of
the total ballots cast in its House district. She offered
exanpl es. If results of a hand count are off by nore than 1
percent, the entire House district's votes will be hand count ed.
9: 06: 55 AM

M5. BREWSTER said HB 94 nentions results, and she clarified that
nmeans both totals, as well as individual races. She opined that
this is the best way to address any concerns about vote counting
as 1 ntended.

9:08: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that conpared to the 0.3 percent
difference in a statewde race, a 1 percent discrepancy would
i ndicate a serious problem

9:08: 57 AM

M5. BREWSTER said she would like Ms. Gowden to respond to that
observati on. In response to a question from Chair Seaton, she
listed some of the nunbers related to voting in his House
district.

9:10: 00 AM
CHAIR SEATON figured that in the smallest [precinct] in his
district, 1 percent would equal 2 votes, while in the |argest

[precinct], 1 percent would equal a difference of 10 votes.

MS. BREWSTER confirmed that's correct.

9:10: 37 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opined, "The tolerances ... should be
very small, given that everything is automated and not generally

touched by people. So, it should be either right or not right."
9:10: 56 AM

M5. BREWSTER responded, "This was the standard set by the
| egi sl ature.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 20, 2006



9:11: 09 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he wants to conmttee to think about what kind
of criteria to develop regarding the standard of rejection.

9:12: 15 AM

M5. BREWSTER noted, "We're not just |ooking at total votes cast,
: we're | ooking at each individual race, as well." She said
she thinks that was the legislature's intent in passing HB 94.

9:13:32 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in conclusion of the overview, said once the state
review board is confident that the results reported are
accurate, it will certify the election.

9:14: 08 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that there have been challenges

regarding the Diebold voting system She asked what the process
was in choosing Diebold for the State of Al aska.

9:14: 33 AM

M5. BREWSTER replied that a request for proposal (RFP) process
was used. One of the requirenents was that the conpany had to
be bonded. She noted that sonme of the problens other states

have experienced are due to the procedures those states have set
up to test and program the machines, which are different than
the procedures the State of Al aska use.

9:16: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked what the primary difference is in
Al aska's procedure.

9:16: 25 AM

M5. BREWSTER said the division does its own coding. She said
she doesn't know if other states "allow for the vendor to do
their programm ng."

9:16:35 AM

M5. GROWDEN pr of f er ed:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- April 20, 2006



There are some jurisdictions that ... have vendors
program their elections. The sanme vendor prints their
ballot, ... troubleshoot[s] their election ..., and
hel p[s] with testing of those cards. ... That has
been an issue through ... different security neasures
that the election assistance conmssion has been
| ooking in best practices. Because when you put all
your eggs in one basket like that, that jurisdiction
then really gives up control of security over their
el ections. W have never, in Alaska, allowed that to
happen with our election progranm ng. It always had
division staff wth bi-partisan review boards doing
the testing, and a different vendor doing the
printing.

9:18: 03 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to questions from Chair Seaton,
confirmed that if a card has been sent out to a precinct and is
found to have a problem it has to be sent back to Juneau to be
reprogrammed. The precincts outside of Juneau do not even have
t he equi prent to reprogram cards.

9:18: 30 AM

M5. GROWNDEN stated that one of the reasons the state chose the
Di ebold system is that it had already invested in a ballot-
counting system for the state, for which procedures and security
neasures had al ready been established, and which had been proven
to accurately count ballots in Al aska. When | ooking at the
purchase of touch screen voting equipnment, to conply w th HAVA,
one of the requirenents was that the system purchased had to be
conpatible with the existing software in current use. The
reason, she explained, was that the division did not want to
have two different ballot tabulation systens in the state that
did not "talk to each other," and where staff would have to take
both sets of results and nerge them together in a manual
process. She stated that there is not any other vendor whose
software is conpatible with the global election nmanagenent
system (GEMS) software [produced by Diebol d].

9:20: 11 AM
CHAI R SEATON clarified that the software used for the state's

Accuvote system is made by Diebold, which is why it 1is
conpatible with Diebold s touch screen machine.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 20, 2006



9:21: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER observed that Diebold already "had a |eg
up"” in conpatibility.

9:21:16 AM

M5. BREWSTER said she was not involved in the RFP process, so
she woul d get back to Representative Gardner with a response.

9:22: 54 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, reiterated that the security procedures in Al aska
will not allow for sonme of the things that have happened [in
ot her states].

9:23: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER nentioned $2 mllion in the federal
budget . She asked if that noney has been spent, if it was
adequate to neet the needs of the division, and what the
proj ected costs are.

9:23: 59 AM

M5. BREWSTER said the division has approxinmately $16 mllion
HAVA funds in an interest-yielding account. Addi tionally, the
division is looking at other ways to inprove elections. For

exanple, the division has opened two satellite offices that
function as regional offices to better serve voters in rapidly
growi ng areas. She reported that the division has also noved
the absentee office from the director's office and made it a
stand-al one office in Anchorage, which should inprove the speed
at which people receive their absentee ballots and the speed at
which the division can process them She said the use of
absentee ballots is a popular nmethod of voting.

9:25:35 AM

V. BREWSTER, in response to a followup question from
Representative Gardner, confirmed that the division has adequate
funds for training and any necessary staff increases. She
offered further details.

9:26:12 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- April 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the voters of Anchorage recently
turned down sone school bonds, and, as a result, t he
Municipality of Anchorage held a special election at the sane
time and place as the general election. He indicated that there
was a cost to the nunicipality. He asked Ms. Brewster if she is
aware of ways to keep costs down in the future.

9:26: 57 AM

M5. BREWSTER responded that the state actually conducted the
special election for the nunicipality in 2004; however, the
Municipality did reinburse the state for the cost of holding
that special election. She stated, "W wll try to work with
muni cipalities as much as possible to try to assist them in
their elections, and if there are ways to cut down on costs, by
doing what the Division of Elections did in 2004, the |ieutenant
governor has advised us that we should continue to work wth
municipalities in that way." In response to a followup
guestion from Representative Guenberg, she said the division
has the ability to do that currently, thus, she is not aware of
any | egislative changes necessary in this regard.

9:28: 04 AM

CHAIR SEATON stated his appreciation of the division's
willingness to work with the runicipalities.

9:28:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if there is any nethod of notifying
voters who vote outside of their own district that they do not
have the full ballot for their district.

9: 29: 08 AM

M5. BREWSTER indicated that there is sonme place to go where the
ballots for all 40 House districts are available. She said that
information is advertised on the Dvision of Elections' web
site, as well as in the newspaper.

9:29:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she thinks a lot of people don't
understand that if they don't vote in their own district, "the
vote that they make in their out-of-district area for candi dates
that are local there won't count, and they don't have the
opportunity to vote for their own."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- April 20, 2006



9:30:10 AM

M5. BREWSTER said it is printed on a voter's registration card
where he/she is to vote. She wel coned suggestions from the
commttee regarding how to better communicate with the public as
to where they are supposed to or can vote.

CHAI R SEATON encouraged all conmttee nenbers to speak directly
with the division wth any suggestions or questions. He
announced that the touch screen machines would be set up until 2
p.m today for anyone to try.

9:32:13 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner, said the division has made presentations for the blind
and disabled community and wll be offering denonstrations
statew de, beginning in June, specifically so that the targeted
users of the machines can try them out and offer their feedback.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG S)
Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion

9:33: 02 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the |ast order of business was the
confirmation hearing for the Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion.

9: 33: 28 AM

CLAI RE VanSCI VER HALL, Appointee to the Alaska Public Ofices
Conmi ssion (APOC), offered her background for the commttee,
relaying that fornmerly she was a teacher, and currently she is a
par al egal and office manager of her husband' s |aw practice. She
stated she is interested in APOC because it plays an inportant
role in governnent oversight - a role in which she said she
woul d i ke to participate.

9:34:51 AM
REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that M. VanSciver Hall shows
integrity and openness and is the nost fair and decent person in

Fai r banks.

9:37:21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 20, 2006



VB. VanSCl VER  HALL, in response to a question from
Representative G uenberg, offered sonme details about her
husband's | aw practi ce.

9: 38: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks it is a great idea to
get people who are involved in famly law into the public
process.

9: 38: 23 AM

VB. VanSCl VER  HALL, in response to a remark nade by
Representative G uenberg, confirmed that APOC is conprised of an
even nunber of Republicans and Denocrats, and although she wll
be filling a Republican seat, she will be fair to both parties.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the folks involved in APOCC are
overworked and underpaid, and he expressed his support of the
conmi ssi on.

9: 39:48 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated that APOC is a conm ssion inportant to the
public, because it verifies that the legislature is fulfilling
et hical and reporting standards. He stated that he is happy to
hear the personal recomendations from people in Fairbanks who
know Ms. VanSci ver Hall.

9:40: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to advance the confirmation of
Claire VanSciver Hall to the joint session of the House and

Senat e. There being no objection, the nomnation of Caire
VanSciver Hall to the Alaska Public O fices Comm ssion was
advanced.

9:41: 14 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that an executive session would take
pl ace next week. In response to a question from Representative
Gardner, he said staff wll not be allowed at the executive
sessi on.

9:42: 37 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG tal ked about signing confidentiality
forms, which would show the gravity of the situation and rem nd
those who sign it of the confidentiality.

9:43: 38 AM

CHAIR SEATON said he would check with Legislative Legal and
Research Services on that issue. He said he would like to |et
those from the Departnent of Honel and Security know ahead of the
executive session which issues the commttee would |ike
addr essed.

ADJ OQURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
9:44:. 40 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 20, 2006



